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CITY OF

MONTGOMERY FINANCIAL PLANNING

A CHARMING PAST, A GLOWING FUTURE. COM M ITTEE OF CoUNCl L-.

February 4, 2022

To: Ken Suer, Chairman
Financial Planning Committee of City Council

From: Brian Riblet, City Manager EKZ

Subject: Financial Planning Committee Meeting February 7, 2022

As a reminder, the Financial Planning Committee is scheduled to meet on Monday,
February 7 at 4:30 p.m. at City Hall. The agenda for this meeting is as follows:

1. January 2022 Income Tax Report - Please see the January Income Tax
Report attached for the Committee’s review and discussion. Staff will be

prepared to answer any questions on this report at Monday’s meeting.

2. Financial Statements for the Community Improvement Corporation - The

Finance Department has compiled the financial statements which will be
submitted to the State of Ohio. The Finance Director will be prepared to
explain the major transactions reflected in the Community Improvement
Corporation’s financial statements. In addition, a draft of the Corporation’s
tax return for 2021 has been prepared for your review.

3. Review of 2021 Revenues and Expenditures - The Finance Department
closed the City’s 2021 financial books on January 6, 2022. Prepared for your

information is a recap of variances for the major revenues and expenditures
for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Finance Director will be prepared
to explain estimated to actual revenue and expenditure variances.

4. Other Business - The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an
opportunity to discuss any issue that may be on your mind, give feedback
and insight into the team’s performance, ask questions and provide
constructive suggestions to enhance the team’s performance in the future.

Also, attached are the minutes from the December 6, 2021 meeting of the Financial
Planning Committee for review and approval at Monday’s meeting.

Should you have questions or concerns regarding the above agenda items or have
additional items to be discussed at the meeting, please do not hesitate to contact me.

c: Financial Planning Committee Members (2)
Mayor and City Council Members (3)
Katie Smiddy, Finance Director
Connie Gaylor, Administrative Coordinator, File

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » montgomeryohio.org * 513-891-2424



@ FINANCIAL PLANNING COMMITTEE OF CITY COUNCIL

MONTQCT}IOFOME Y 10101 Montgomery Road *« Montgomery, Ohioc 45242
R (513) 891-2424 « Fax (513) 891-2498
A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.
AGENDA
February 7, 2021

City Hall
4:30 P.M,

1. Callto Order

2. Guests and Residents

3. Communications

4. New Business
a. January 2022 Income Tax Report
b. Financial Statements for the Community Improvement Corporation
c. Review of 2021 Revenues and Expenditures

5. Approval of Minutes: December 6, 2021

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment
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CITY OF

MONTGOMERY FINANCIAL PLANNING

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE COMM |TTEE OF COUNCIL

February 1, 2022

To: Brian Riblet, City Manager 87
QX

From: Katie Smiddy, Finance Director

Subject: 2022 January Income Tax Variance Report

Year to Date

For the month of January, the City’s total income tax receipts were $1,250,697, which
is an increase of $201,798 or 19.2% compared to the 2021 January collections of
$1,048,899. The variance is attributable to an increase in withholding tax revenue,
primarily courtesy tax withholding for Montgomery residents.

% Change
MTD January Actuals 1,250,697 1,048,899 19.2%
YTD Collections 1,250,697 1,048,899 19.2%

YTD Actual YTD Estimate % Change

2022 Estimated
Collections 1,250,697 968,059 29.2% _

A breakdown by category for January 2022 is as follows:

Withholding- January 2022 withholding collections were $1,074,100; an increase of
$319,948 or 42.42% when compared to January 2021 collections of $754,152. The
variance is due to a large increase in several courtesy withholding payments for
residents, along with a higher volume of payments.

Business- In January 2022, net profits from businesses located within or doing business
within Montgomery were $25,330. This is an increase of $3,216 or 14.54% when
compared to January 2021 collections of $22,114; and is just slightly below the January
2020 collections. Business revenue in January is primarily from 4™ quarter estimated
payments for the prior year, so the increase is a positive sign that businesses are
surviving the pandemic.

Resident- Revenues of $151,267 were collected in January 2022 from residents living
in Montgomery, which is a decrease of $121,366 or (44.52)% when compared to
January 2021 collections of $272,633. Reports show that a greater number of

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - montgomerychio.org = 513-891-2424



taxpayers paid 4 quarter estimated payments in December 2021 rather than waiting
until the January 15 deadline. In addition, several year-end payments were remitted in
January 2021 from residents who typically pay a large amount in 4h quarter.

The following schedule breaks down collections by source and provides a graph
comparing actual and estimated income tax revenues for 2020 and 2021. There is also
an End of Month report attached showing the comparison between month-to-date and
year-to-date.

c: Financial Planning Committee Members (2)
Mayor and City Council Members (3)
Katie Smiddy, Finance Director
Connie Gaylor, Administrative Coordinator
File

City of Montgomery = 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » (513) 891-2424
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&

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

February 4, 2022

To: Brian Riblet, City Manager N

From: Katie Smiddy, Finance Director

Subject: Financial Statements for the Montgomery Community Improvement
Corporation

Please find attached the financial statements for the Montgomery Community
Improvement Corporation which must be filed with the State Auditor’s Office within 120
days after the end of the fiscal year.

The Statement of Net Position reflects that the corporation had $2,053,479.45 in a
demand deposit account at Fifth Third Bank as of December 31, 2021.

The Statement of Financial Activities reflects Grants Received of $0 Interest Income of
$0, Grants Awarded of $41,706.61 and Professional Fees expensed in the amount of

$36,000 for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Statement of Cash Flow reflects the corporation decreased its cash position from
$2,131,186.06 in 2020 to 2,053,479.45 as a result of Grants Awarded and Professional
Fees.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if there are questions or should you require
additional information.

10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - montgomeryohio.org » 513-891-2424



Community Improvement Corporation of the City of
Montgomery, Ohio
Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020



MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Net Position

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITES
Accounts Payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

2021 2020
$2,056,479.45 $2,134,186.06
$2,056,479.45 $2,134,186.06
$ 3,000.00 $ 3,000.00
) 3,000.00 § 3,000.00
$2,053,479.45 $2,131,186.06
$2,053,479.45 $2,131,186.06

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Activities and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Interest Income
Grants Received

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:
Grants Awarded
Professional Fees
TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION END OF YEAR

2021 2020

$ 55.22

$2,141,595.50

: 2,141,650.72

41,706.61 9,179.28
36,000.00 36,000.00
77,706.61 45,179.28
(77,706.61) 2,096,471.44
2,131,186.06 34,714.62
$2,053,479.45 $2,131,186.06

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Payments to Vendors
Cash Payments to Grantees
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Earnings on Investments
Grants Received
Transfers In
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
NET CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET CASH AT END OF YEAR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

2021

$ (36,000.00)

2020

$  (39,000.00)

(41,706.61) (9,179.28)
(77,706.61) (48,179.28)
- 55.22

2,141,595.50

2,141,650.72

$ (77,706.61)

2,131,186.06

$2,093,471.44

37,714.62

$2,053,479.45

$2,131,186.06




MCIC
2016 Journal Entries

dr. professional fees expen

cr. Accounts payable

dr. grant award expense
cr. Grant payable

dr. interest receivable
cr. Interest income

Trial Balance

Assets

Cash

Investments
Interest receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Grants payable

Unrestricted net assets

Revenue
Interest income

Expense
Grants awarded
Professional expense

3,000.00

Balance
12/31/2017

133,624.24

3,000.00

15,000.00

49,595.34

3,000.00

2018 cash
activity Reversing Entries
dr cr
(52,100.90)
3,000.00
1,072.00
1,693.10
17,794.00 -
36,000.00 3,000.00

Adjusting Entries
dr cr

- 3,000.00
- 15,000.00

15,000.00
3,000.00

Balance
12/31/2017

81,523.34

3,000.00
28,928.00

49,595.34

1,693.10

32,794.00
36,000.00
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o 990

Department of the Treasury
Intemnal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Gode {except private foundations)

P Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
P Go to www.irs.gov/Form$390 for instructions and the latest information.

| oMB No. 1545-0047

2021

Open to Public
Inspection

A _For the 2021 calendar year, or tax year beginning January 01

, 2021, and ending Decamber 31

,2021

B  Check if applicable:
D Address change

D Name change

[ initial reton

[ Final retumsterminated
O Amended return

2] Application pending

G Name of organization MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Doing businass as

D Employer identification number

31-1132938

Number and street (or P.O. box If mail Is not delivered to street address)

Room/sulle

E Telephone number

10101 Mentgomery Rd 513-792-8349
City or town, state or provincs, country, and ZIP or forsign posial coda
Montgomery, OH 45242 G Gross receipts $ 0

F Name and address of principal officer: Lee Ann Bissmeyer President
10101 Montgomery Rd, Montgomery,OH,45242

1 Tax-exempt status:

501(c)3) |:| 501(c) ( ) 4 (insert no.) ] 4947(a)(1) or D 527

J  Website: >

https:/iwww.montgomeryohio.org

H(a) Is this a group retum for subordinales? D Yes [ No

H(b) Are all subordinates included?[] Yes [JNo
If “No,” attach a [ist. See Instructions.

H{c) Group exemption number P

K__Form of organization: [] Corporation [ ] Trust [_] Association | ] Other »

’ L Year of formation: 1984

| M State of legal domicile: OH

Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities:
3 Promote Economic and Civic Developmant In the City of Montgamery, Chio
=
]
E 2 Check this box » [ if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
g 3  Number of voting members of the goveming bady (Part VI, line 1a) . . 3 7
ﬁ 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 7
2| & Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2021 (Fart V, line 2a) . 5 0
% 6  Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . . . o om % ou 6
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part Vili, column (C}, line 12 . 7a 0
b _Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 i % 7b
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part Vill, line1h) . . . . . . . . 0
E| 9 Program service revenue (Part VIIl, line 2g) : 0
é 10 Investment income (Part Vill, column (A}, lines 3, 4, and 7d) . 0
11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), fines 5, 6d, Bc, 9c, 10c, and 11e) . 0 0
12 Tofal revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A}, line 12) 0 0
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . 41,707 41,707
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part iX, column (A), lined) . . . 0
ﬁ 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5—1 0} 0
g 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part X, column (A), line 11e) . . . 0
3 b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) » 0 ol Bh B
17  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . . . 36,000 36,000
18  Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, colurmn (A), line 25} 77,707 77,707
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 . . e (77,707) (77,707)
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
EE 20 Total assets (PartX, line1s) . . . . . . “n @ owm oy 2,134,186 2,056,479
<3| 21  Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . Coe e 3,000 3,000
27|22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 . . . . . . 2,131,186 2,053,479

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and befief, it is
true, comect, and complete. Declaration of preparer (cther than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledgs.

Sign ’ Signature of officer Date
Here Katie Smiddy , Finance Director
Type or print name and title
Paid Print/Type preparer's name Praparer's signature Date Check _| it [ FTIN
self-employed
Preparer
Use Only | Dm'sname  » Firm's EIN »
Fimn's address » Phone no.
May the IRS discuss this retum with the preparer shown above? See instructions o ai Llves [no
Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 (2021)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.



Form 890 (2021) Page 2
BCIll]  Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a responseornotetoanylineinthisPartil . . . . . . . . .. ... 0O

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:
Provide Economic Development Iniatives In the City of Monigomary.

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-E27 . . coe e e e e e e Oves e
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
BEVIEREE & oo s o wwon wm v pwmod v e sw e x s m E @ m s W owowsowma  L1ves [HNe
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule 0.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ____ )(Expenses$ __ 36000including grants of §
In 2015, the CIC enlered inlo a contract with DSD advisors to support the goal of daveloping the Gale
Redevelopmant/Montgomery Quarler Area. DSD Advisors work with tha CIC to promote the Interest of the CIC an
redevaloping vacant land and bringing Jobs to the City of Montgomery

0) (Revenue $ __ 0)

4b (Code: ____ )(Expenses$__ ___41707includinggrantsof$ __ O(Revenue$ )
In 2014, the CIC Initiated a program ta promote the preservation of historic buildings in the City of Monlgomery, The
board alk d funds 1o the program whersby eliglble structures would be glven a 50% malching grant up to @ maximum of
515,000 an a minlmum of $2,000 per grant

4c (Code: )(Expenses$____ gincludinggrantsof$ ___ oO)(Revenue$ ___ 0)

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ Oincluding grants of § 0) (Revenue $ 0

4e Total program service expenses p 77,707

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021)
[EAT  Checkiist of Required Schedules

1

10

11

—

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

21

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a pnvate foundatlon}‘? If "Yes,"”
complete Schedule A . ., . i B 5 o .

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedu!e of Contnbutors'? See instructions . . . .
Did the organization engage in direct or Indirect political campalgn activities on behalf of or in eppositlon to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part| .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying actlwttes. or have a sectlon 501 (h)
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) crganization that receives membershlp dues.
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Iif

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donars
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part! . . . . . . .

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, |nclud|ng easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? if “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f “Yes,”
complate Schedule D, Partlli . . . . . v i . e .

Did the organization report an amount in Part X Ilne 21 for escrow or custodial acccunt I:ab:llty, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” compiete Schedule D, Part IV . . . . i E . g

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schegule D, Part V . ;

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedute D Parts VI
VI, VIII, IX, or X, as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, PartVi . . . . . .

Did the organization report an amount for |nvestments--other securrtles in Part X l}ne 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part Vil .

Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIll . .

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX . . . . v weon i

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If “Yes,” comp.fete Schedu!e D Part X
Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the arganization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? if “Yes,” compiete
Schedule D, Parts XfandXli . . . . . .

Was the organization included in consolldated tndependent audited finaneial statements fcr the tax year? If
“Yes,” and if the organization answered “No” to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xll is optional

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b){(1)(A)i)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? . .

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmakmg,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts | and IV.

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedufe F, Parts ffand IV .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV. .

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and eontnbutlens on
Part VIll, lines 1c and Ba? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Partll . . . . .

Did the arganization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gammg actw'tles on Part VIII Ime Qa?

If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Parttli . . . . i Py s m Fow d
Did the organization operate one or more hospital faCI[I'lIeS? If "Yes, comp!ete Schedufe H. .

If “Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this retum?

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column {A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts land If .

Yeas

—

OO0 [O|0(g 000 0

CIERGCIEIGCEEEEEEER

10

11a

11b

11c

11d

11e

11f

12a

0O 0O HO 3OO O

12b

13

14a

14b

15

16

17

18

O |00 0|0 |-

19

MR BEE BEO0 R RS E RS

20a

20b

21| | [

Forrm 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021)
iGldld  Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

22

23

24a

26

27

31
32

37

38

Page 4

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 27 If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and Iif

Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensatlon of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and hlghest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J . . . . . i W . . oW s

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue wrth an outstandlng pnncupa! amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25a . 5 5

Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bands beyond a temporary period exception? .
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refundmg escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . . . . A . 5w omom oA owm o om v om

Did the organization act as an “on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandmg at any time during the year? .
Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c){28) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | .

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transactlon has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part] . . . .

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for recewabtes from or payabtes to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part il . . . . ; . & i

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L,
Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee creator or founderI or substantial contributor? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . g .

A family member of any individual described in Ime 28&? If "Yes, compfete Schedule L Part IV .

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or orgamzatlons described in line 28a or 28b? if
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . Y e . .
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contnbutlons‘? If “Yes,” compfete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or quahf ied
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M . . . . . -
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? /f “Yes. complete Schedule N, Part!
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule N, Part Il :

Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the orgamzatlon under Regu!atlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part] .

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entnty? If ”Yes, camplete Schedu!e Fr‘ Part i, m
oriV,andPart V, linet . . . .. . .
Did the organization have a controlled ermty withln the meaning of section 512(b)(1 3)?

If “Yes” 1o line 353, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transactlon wnth a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)7 If “Yes,” complete Schedufe R, Part V, fine 2 .
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? if “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 . . . . . s
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is nut a related organlzanon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule 0 . . . . . =

23

24a

24b

24c

24d

25a

25b

U 0 ogofgo g ||E§
B8 ®mQOo0fds (O (O

26

27

|d
k]

28a

28b

28c

29

30

31

32

35a

35b

37

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornoteto any line inthisPartV. . . . . . . . . .

8
plo/olofdolologdodo 0o
O |08 E08B 8|0 HE EE B

Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a 0

Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- If not applicable . . . 1b 0

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . . o o w o o o om oW @

|&

LR
1
o

Form 990 (2021)



Form 590 (2021)
A7 Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (confinued)

2a
b
3Ja
b
4a
b

5a

6a

oo

Sa o o

12a

13

16

17

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed far the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 23 0

If at least one Is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retumns? .

Note: If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file. See instructions.
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . .

2 | [

3a

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O

At any time during the calendar year, did the arganization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financlal account)?

O|g
O
3 [T110O1
O

4a

If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country &
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or Is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?

If “Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? .

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 000 and dld the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? .

If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . 3 £ P wos S5 8 % i

Organizations that may receive deductible contnbuhons under section 1?0((:)
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made paﬂly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided tothe payor? . . . . . &5 P oG o B & @

If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services prowded?
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dlspose of tang|ble personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e

If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed dunng theyear . . . . 7d
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?

Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? .

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, alplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization fils a Form 1098-C?
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsering organization have excess business holdings at any time during theyear? . . . . . . . .
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 . g

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

5b

5c || |

6a I:I m
6o (1]
7a |1

7b

Tc.D IZI
7 [0 [
7 M
7

7h E {
BD[I]
‘-Qa: =

Ll
o [T LT

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line 12 . . . . 10a

Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facllmes ‘ 10b

Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross Income from members or shareholders . . . . . . 11a

Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or pald to other sources

against amounts due or received fromthem.) . . . . . . i 11b o ey
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzat:on f I|ng Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a|[] ]
If “Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . 12b B
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers. ] e

Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a([ ] [

Note: See the Instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule 0
Enter the amount of reserves the organization Is required to malintain by the states in which

the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . . . . . . . . . 13b

Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . - 13c ] |
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tannlng services durlng the tax year" 14a o |

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b ||
Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or

excess parachute payment(s) duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 15 |1 |
If “Yes,” see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. G T
Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? | 16 111
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O. SRR
Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified person, or mine operator engage in any

activities that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 . . . . 17 (111

If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021) Page 6
Il Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each "Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No”
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote toany lineinthisPartVl . . . . . . . . . . . . . [O
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . 1a |7
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b |7
2  Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustes, or key employee? . . . . . . . _

3  Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct

L I

o
BEL

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to 2 management company or other person? . 3
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? | 4
& Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? A R R 6 m
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . . L .. ... .. 7a | [
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to {or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 ([ |[]
8  Did the organization contemporaneously document the mestings held or written actions undertaken during [ = )i
the year by the following: . o
a The govering body? . ga [ |[]
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8b _D—
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VI, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . o ([ I(Ld
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . 10a|] | [T/]

b If "Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b

11a  Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Farm 990 to all members of its goveming body before filing the form? |11a
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. i o
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,"go toline 13 . . . . . . . . 12a
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? |12b
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”

describe on Schedule O how thiswasdone. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... [12][A B
13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . R R 5§ oW G s 13
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . 14
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by |
independent persons, comparability data, and centemporanecus substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEQ, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a | L] %
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15b lzr
If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions. e e e
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement |- e
with a taxable entity during theyear? . . . . . . . . . <. 16a 1 [Z|

b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the Sl :
organization's exempt status with respect to such amangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b|[ 1]

Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed > OH
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)
{3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
I:l Own website [ Another’s website m Upon request I:] Other (explain on Schedule O)
19  Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made Its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records b
Katle Smiddy, Finance Diractor, 10101 Montgomery Rd, Montgomery, OH, 45242, (513) 792-8349

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains aresponse or note to any lineinthisPartVIl . . . . . . . . . . . . . O
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

® List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees {whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

* List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of “key employee.”

* List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employeeg)
who received reportable compensation {box 5 of Form W-2, Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1098-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

* List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received mare than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

* List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.
[ Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

©
@ ®) (do not ch:cf::z?e than one ® = "
Neme and tle Yo |lmmmamesanbrim | CEEE | et |
per weak : fﬂ_cerind = dlreclnr:ruslee) from the from related compensatlon
fistany |S2(2 =t Q 35 organization (W-2/ {organizations (W-2/ from the
noustor (S (58 (e |37 |3 to9s-msc 1099-MISC/ organization and
related (82 (5|° [2(|52|%| 100s-NeQ) 1099-NEC) | related organizations
lorgarizations| S = | 8 g §
below S 5 3 2
dotted ling) o 32
JENE
(1) Lee Ann Bissmeyer 1.00 0
Trustea 0.00 EI —I[D D D 1,200 0
_{2)_ Mika Cappal 1.00 DD
Trustea 5.00 |.|_L! D D D 0 1,200 0
(3) Cnis Dobrozsi .00 0 —_—
Trustes 0.00 IE I:I D D ' 0
(4) RonMossar 1.00
Trustes 0.00 m D D D 9 Thoo 0
(5) Cralg Margalls 1.00
Trustes 0.00 III D D D 0 1'300 0
(6) SashaNaiman 1.00 )
100
Trustes 0.00 m D I:I D 0
(7) Ken Suer 1.00 0 1,200
Trustea 0.00 El I:l D D . 0
(8) Brian K Riblett 1.00
Execulive Director 0.00 EI m D 0 186,658
(9) Katie M Smiddy 1.00
Finance Direclor 0.00 D D m D D 0 127.243 0
{19 OOOOoQO
] OOOdof
- OO0 op
=) m]=n =]
i 0000 Oof

Form 990 (2021)
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Form 990 (2021)
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
©
Position
W : ® (do not check more than one o ® ®
Name and title Average | box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustes) | Compensation compensation of other
per week ey == ey from the from related compensalion
fistany |3 gla g & (3 & | g |organization (W-2/|organizations (W-2/ from the
hoursfor | S| 8 | o 3‘ §' g 1089-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related 25 5 E g5 = 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations) = = | g g
below E g 2 E
dotted line) 2|48 @
8 :
15
= Oo00oo
(9 opoOoQO
1
i opoooQo
18|
s DopOooop
19
= Oooooo
20
- ] ]
21
£l | ]
(22)
OO4o0 0
23]
& opoooo
24) [ DIEI’EI OO
25)
2l - ooOdop
ib Subtotal . . . . v oo > 0 322,201
¢ Total from contlnuatlon sheets to Part Vll Sectuon A |
d Total (add lines1bandic). . . . - 0 322,201
2  Total number of individuals {including but not I|mited to those Ilsted above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highes’( compensated ot [ [
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual : 3 ||
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensanon from 1he ] ]
organization and related orgamzatlons greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” comp!ete Schedule J for such | o] o
individual . . . . Vs 'Rimlim}
5 Did any person Ilsted on Ime 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organlzatlon or |nd|wdual b B R
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . P 5 |:| [Z|

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
& ® ©
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
2 Total number of independent contractors {including but not limited to those listed above) who

received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization b 2

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021) Page 9

ATl Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains aresponse or noteto any lineinthisPartVil . . . . . . . . . . . . . O
Tntal‘r;e\{'enue Rslaiadrgr)exempt Unr(acl:;tad Ravenue(lne)xcluded
function revenue | business revenue | from tax under
sections 512-514
g @a| 1a Federatedcampaigns . . . . | 1a Rl e
EE b Membershipdues . . . . . [1b !
G_E ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . . | 1c
£ | d Related organizations . . . 1d ol )
c Tl e Govemment grants (contnbutmns) 1e % '
2| f Al other contributions, gifts, grants,
.fg' = and similar amounts not included above | 1¢
.ug a Noncash contributions included in Cenn
:E'u linesta-1f. . . . . . . . 1g |$ 0 |y
88| h TotalAddlnestatf. . . . ... ... »
Business Code S
8 2a 0
Egl b
L c
E2 d
e
2 e
a t  All other program service revenus .
9 Total. Addlines2a-2f . . . . . . . > 0
3 Investment income (including d:wdends, !nterest and
other similaramounts) . . . . . . . . . . P 0
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 Royalties . . . . . . . ., ... ... P»
1) Real (i) Personal
6a Grossrents . . | 6a
b Less: rental expenses | 6b i
¢ Rental income or {loss) | 6¢ 0 0 ’
d Netrentalincomeorfloss) . . . . . . . . b 0
7a Gross amount from () Securities (i) Other : e
sales of assets
other than inventory | 7a
@ b Less: cost or other basis
g and salesexpenses . | 7p
2 c Gainor(oss) . .| 7¢ 0 [ B |
"E d Netgainor{oss) . . . . . .. . . . . P 0
£ | 8a Gross income from fundraising bl
o events (notincluding$
of contributions reported on line
1c). See Part IV, line18 , , . 8a
b Less: direct expenses . . . 8b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraisin? events . . P
9a Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 . | aa
b Less:directexpenses . . . . | 8b e e N
¢ Netincome or (Joss) from gaming activities . . . » 0
10a Gross sales of inventory, less peane e e
returns and allowances . . . |40a i =
b Less:costofgoodssold . . . [10b e e
¢ _Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . . M 0
» Business Code |- o f
3 11a
23y
S o
85 ©
B %} d Alotherrevenue . . - e
= e Total Addlines1ta-i1d. . . . . . . . . & ol ,
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ., . . . . . P 0 0 0 0

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021)
IEZZEd Statement of Functional Expenses

Page 10

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c){4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here » [] if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) i i

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX . . . O
- r c
G5, 6, and 100 of Part VI | oS | poyues | amoleund | roddas
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations e ]
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic f
individuals. See Part IV, line22 . . . . 41,707 !
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign govermments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4  Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, dwectors,
trustees, and key employees . .
6 Compensation not included above to dlsqualnﬁed
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .
7  Other salaries and wages .
8  Pension plan accruals and contnbutlons {i nclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9 Otheremployee benefits . . . . . .
10 Payrollitaxes . . . . g om am
11 Fees for services (nonemployeee)
a Management .
b Legal . . . . .
¢ Accounting @ e m e om onw o
d Lobbying . . . . P 36,000
e Professional fundraising servicas See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees . . .
g Other. {if line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.)
12  Advertising and promotion
13 Officeexpenses . . . . . .
14  Information technology . . . . . .
16 Royalties . . . . . , . . . ..
1§Occupancy..........
- 17  Travel .
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 iInterest . .
21 Paymentsto arfﬁltates
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlun
23 Insurance . .
24  Other expenses. Ilemlze expenses nnt covered e
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e, If |*/ =
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column | -
{A), amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0) |
a
b
c
d
e All other expenses
25 _ Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 77,707 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

Form 990 (2021)



Form 990 (2021)

Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

Page 11

O

(B)

Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing . . . . . . . . 2134186 1 2,056,479
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . . . . . . . . . . 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
4  Accounts receivable, net . . . 5 % o8 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any currant or fonner oﬂ’ cer, director Ao
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% Sl
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . 5 '
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined |- S |
under saction 4958(f)(1)}, and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . 16|
&1 7 Notesandloansreceivable,net . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
®| 8 Inventories for sale oruse . . o 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges T 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other |l
basis. Complete Part Vl of ScheduleD . . . |40a Fla
b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . |10b 10c
11 Investments—publicly traded securites . . . . . . . . . . ., 11
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line11 . . . . . . . 13
14 Intangible assets . . . e R R 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, Ime 1 1. ... e 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal Iine 33) i 2,134,186 | 16 2,056,479
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . 3,000 | 17 3,000
18 Grantspayable. . . . . . . . e e e 18
19 Deferredrevenue . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . 18
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . . i § 20
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Gurn plete Part IV of Schedule D 21
8 22 loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, 2
= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% i
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . 29
=1 |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . 23
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties ; 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related thlrd
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of ScheduleD . . . . % e e e e e 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 1hrough 25 . 3,000 | 26 3,000
o Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check hare > E| e G
e and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33. = SR
27  Net assets without donor restrictions " 2,131,186 | 27 2,053,479
g 28  Net assets with donor restrictions . . . ' 28
g Organizations that do not follow FASB ASG 958 check here b D i
& and complete lines 29 through 33.
© 129 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . p
3. 30  Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund .
w0
2 31  Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds .
4|32 Totalnetassetsorfundbalances. . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,131,186 | 32 2,053,479
Z | 33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . 2,134,186 | 33 2,056,479

Form 980 (2021)



Form 980 (2021) Page 12
;1P {0 Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any lineinthisPartX . . . . . . . . . . . . . QO
1  Total revenue (must equal Part VI, column (A), line 12) . . . g 1
2 Total expenses {must equal Part IX, column (&), line25) . . . . . . . . . . . 2 77,707
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line2fromline 1 . . . . . . e e e 3 @7,707m)
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year {must equal Part X, Ilne 32 column (A)) . 4 2,131,186
5 Netunrealized gains (losses)oninvestments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities e e 6
7 Investmentexpenses . . . . . . . . v 4 . e e e e e e e 7
8  Prior period adjustments . . . . TERER ; 8
9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explaln on Schedule O) . 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year, Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X Ilne
32 coumn(@B) . . . . . . e e e e .. e e e 10 2,053,479
Financial Statements and Repartmg
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornoteto any lineinthisPartXll . . . . . . . . . .. . . O
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [ JCash [zJAccrual [ Other o B e
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other,” explain on | | =l
Schedule O. 4 il et
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . . 23 IEI I

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consalidated basis, or both:
[c]Separate basis [JConsolidated basis [ ]Both consolidated and separate basis B ot
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . . . . . . . |20 |[d (O
If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted ona | | i
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
[)Separate basis []Consolidated basis []Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ If“Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . 2c |4 100
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explainon [ | | ©
Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Gircular A-1337 . . . . . 3a |[d [[]
b If “Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts? l'f the orgamzatlon dld not undergo the
required audit or audits, explaln why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits . ab || O
Form 990 (2021)
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2021

Open to Public

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support

990
(Form ) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c){3) organization or a section 4947{a)(f) nonexempt charitable trust.
P Attach to Form 990 or Form 930-EZ.

Deparitment of the Treasury

Internal Revanue Servica » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it Is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 [JA church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1){A){i).
2 [JA school described in section 170{b)(1){A)ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
3 [JA hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 [JA medical research organization aperated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1){A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, clty, and state:
[] An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)
6 [Z]A federal, state, or local govemment or governmental unit described in section 170(b}(1)(A)(v)-
7 []An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described In section 170(b)(1}{A){vi). (Complete Part II.)

8 []A community trust described in section 170(b)(1){A)(v]). (Complete Part I1.)

9 Oan agricultural research organization described in section 170(b){1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university: .

10 [JAn organization that normally receives (1) more than 34130 of its SUpPort Irom contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 3314% of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part lil.)

11 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509{a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 121, and 12g.

a [ TypelA supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [ Typell. Asupporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ [ Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [ Typem non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally Integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [J Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type Hll
functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

(1]

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . . . cws ess B . |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

) Name of supported organlzation ) EIN {ln Type of organlzation | () Is the organlzation | {v) Amount of monatary {vl) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 | listed In your goveming support (ses other support (see
abova (sea Instructions)) document? instructions) Instructions)

Yes No
(A) O O
® O O
©) O O
()] ol o
€ O 1
Total 55 e

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 930-EZ. Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 880) 2021



Schedule A (Form 990) 2021 _ _ Pags 2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b){(1)(A)(iv} and 170(b)(1){A)(v})

{Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lIl. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 {d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total

1

6

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”) .

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

Total. Add lines 1 through 3 .

The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% oftheamount | =~ . S e e
shownonline 11, column(f). . . . [ oo o m e
Public support. Subtract line 5 from line4 | =~ : S| e

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 {e) 2021 (f) Total

7 Amountsfromline4 . . . . .
8 Gross income from interest, dwtdends.
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similarsources . . . . ., .
9  Netincome from unrelated business
activitles, whether or not the business
isregularly carriedon . . . .
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part Vl.) . .
11 Total support. Add Imes?through 10 s ] A BRI Sl
12  Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see lnstructlons) € Al & 12 |
13  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, thlrd fcunh or ﬁﬂh tax year as a section 501{c)(3)
organizatlnn. check this box and stophere . . . O T | i n |
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14  Public support percentage for 2021 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f) . . . . 14 %
15  Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Part ll, line 14 . . 15 %
16a 33'1% support test—2021. If the organization did not check the box on llne 13 and !Ine 14 Is 33'1% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . e a0 e o L]
b 33'»% support test—2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and I|ne 15 is 33‘::% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . A & |

17a

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 163, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organizatiun meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organlzation qua[iﬁes asa publlcly supported
organization . . . < g i &z o8 m B
10%-facts-and—c:rcumstances test—2020. If the orgamzatlen did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organlzatlon quahﬂes as a publicly supported

organization . . . . . » 0
18 Private foundation. If the organlzatlon dld not check a box on I|ne 13 163. 16b 17a or 17b check 1h|s box and see
instructions . . . . Ve W x m o m m ma s e e e e s m e o w ow PP D

Schedule A (Form 830) 2021



Schedule A {Form 990) 2021 Page 3
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509{a)(2)
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2017 (b) 2018 (c) 2019 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)

2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
fumished in any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose . . .

3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated frade or business under section 513

4  Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
recelved from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

¢ Addlines 7aand 7b ¢ @

8 Public support. (Subtract line Tc from
line 6. ) T
Section B. Total SUpporl
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » | (a) 2017 {b) 2018 (c) 2018 (d) 2020 (e) 2021 {f) Total
8 Amounts fromlineé . . . ;
10a Gross income from Interest, dwidands.
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources .

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on

12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.) .

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c 11

and12)) . . . .
14  First § years. If the Form 990 is for 1ha organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501{c)(3)
orgamzation check this box and stop here . . . O B @ W 8 @ W & 8 & % £ @ % W ..o PO
Section C. Computation of Public S Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2021 (line 8, column {f), divided by line 13, column (f)) .. . . |15 %
16 __ Public support percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Partlll, line15 . . . . e « o« s + |18 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2021 (line 10c, column (), divided by line 13, column () . . . | 17 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2020 Schedule A, Partlll, line 17 . . . 18 %
19a 33'n% support tests—2021. If the organization did not check the box on line 14 and [lne 15 is more than 33'5%, and line
17 is not more than 33'a%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . W [ |

b 33'a% support tests—2020. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33'3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33'4%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization P O

-20 _ Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions P [1
Schedule A (Form 890) 2021




Schedule A (Form 590) 2021
Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part . If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B, If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Page 4

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

4a

Sa

9a

10a

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s goveming
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)7? If "Yes,” answer | - -

lines 3b and 3c below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes, ” explain in Part VI what conirols the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such controf and discretion
despite being controlfed or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes,

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part Vi, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(ili) the authority under the organization’s organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

Substitutioris only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (ji) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (i) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 980).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
77 If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more |

disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? Iif “Yes,” provide detall in Part V.

Did one or more disqualified persons {as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detaif in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.
Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporling organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes," answer line 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

: Yes

No

10b] [
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Supporting Organizations (continued)

11
a

b
c

Page D

Yes

No

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
A person who directly or indirectly contrals, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and

11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?

11a

A family member of a person described on line 11a above?

A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detaif in Part VI.

11b

11c

oo

omE

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

1

Did the governing body, members of the goveming body, officers acting in thelr official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? if “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or resirictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

Did the arganization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes," expiain in Part
Vi how providing such benefit carrled out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

1

Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If "No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations

1

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (j) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, {ll} a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and {ili) coples of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either () appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? if “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s

supported organizations played in this regard.

Section E. Type IlI Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1
a
b

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

(] The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
[] The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

¢ [ The organization supported a govemmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supperied a govermmmental entity (see instructions),

2
a

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's
Involvement, one or mere of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI.

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes

No
o

3a

L]

! D_ %
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lEn Type lll Non-l?unctionaﬁy Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1 [ check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain In Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type [l non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Page 6

Section A—Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year ®) g‘;;g’r‘lgl‘)(ea’
1 Net short-term capital gain 1
2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 2
3 _ Other gross income (see instructions) 3
4 Add lines 1 through 3. 4
5  Depreciation and depletion §
6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions) 6
7___Other expenses (see instructions) 7
8  Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8
Section B—Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ®) gglﬁ'r‘;;;ear
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see ey
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year): :
a__Average monthly value of securities 1a
b _Average monthly cash balances ib
¢ _Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets ic
d_Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors i
(explain in detail in Part Vi) i
2 _ Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2
3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d. 3
4  Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions). 4
5  Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3) 8
6  Multiply line 5 by 0.035. 6
7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions 7
8  Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6) 8
Section C--Distributable Amount ; Current Year
1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A) 1
2 Enter0.85of ling 1. 2|
3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A) 3|
4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3. 4|
5 Income tax imposed in prior year 5 [
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to j_' =
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6 AR A ‘4
7  [JCheck here if the cument year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally |ntegrated Type III suppomng organization

(see instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990) 2021



Schedule A (Form 930) 2021 Page 7
B Type il Non-Functionally integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continuad)

Section D—Distributions Current Year
1__ Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2  Amounts paid to perform actlvity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5__ Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required —provide details in Part Vi) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part Vi). See instructions. 6
7__ Total annual distributions, Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 8
9 _ Distributable amount for 2021 from Section C, line 6 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
0 W D
Section E—Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Underdistributions Distributable

Excess Distributions Pre-2021 Amount for 2021

1__ Distributable amount for 2021 from Sectlon C, line &

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2021

(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See

instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2021

From2016 . . .

From2017 . .

From 2018

From 2019

From2020 . ., . ., .

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2021 distributable amount

Carryover from 2016 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3| from line 3f.

Distributions for 2021 from

Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applled to 2021 distributable amount

¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

§ Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2021, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2021. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in|
Part VI. See instructions. :

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2022. Add lines 3]
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2017 .

Excess from 2018 ,

Excess from 2019 .,

Excess from 2020 .

Excess from2021 ., . .

©
=l=|T|Q|=|o|alo |o|w

o+

oo

a0 |o|e
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Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
lIl, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 93, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)
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| omeNo. 1545-0047

2021

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements

(Form 990) » Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 980,
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 123, or 12b,

Dapartment of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. Open tq Public
Intemal Ravenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form3390 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Nama of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

1 Total number atendofyear. . . . ..
2  Aggregate value of contributions to (dunng year) .
3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
4  Aggregate value at end of year .
& Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . . . . . [ClYes [ No
6  Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible privatebenefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 . . e .. ClYes [1No
I Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization {check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public us (for example, recreation or education) ] Preservation of a historically important land area
[] Protection of natural habitat 5] Preservation of a certified historic structurs
@ Preservation of open space
o]

2 mplete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year. “-"| Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservationeasements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservationeasements. . . . . . . Qo 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure Included in (a] v omeow 2c
d Number of conservation easements included in () acqulred after 7/25/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register . . . i 5@ . od
3  Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released extmgmshed or termmated by the organization during the
tax year b

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located -
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

waatlons, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . [ClYes O No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
»
7  Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
»>$
8  Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 17001)(4)(8)0)
and section 170(h)(@)(E)iy? . . . . . { & @ .« [OvYes ONo

9  In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservatlon easemants in |ts revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xlil the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

() Revenueincluded on Form 990, PartVill, fine1 . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .» §
(ii) Assets included in Form 890, PartX . . . . . . . . . . . . A

2  If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other simllar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenueincluded on Form 990, PartVill,linet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . P> &

b Assetsincluded in Form 990, PartX . . . . . o e e e e w i e i v o P §

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Fon'n 990. Cat. No. 52283D Schedule D (Form 880) 2021




Schedule D {Form 990) 2021 Page 2
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets {continued)
Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):
a [ Public exhibition d [ Loan or exchange program
b [ Scholarly research e [ Other
¢ [ Preservation for future generations
4  Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
Xiil.
§ During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . ClYes [INo
Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, PartX? . . . . . S & e e e v o v v o OYes Ono

b If "Yes,” explain the arrangement In Part X!l and cumplete the following table
Amount
¢ Beginningbalance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 1ic
d Additionsduringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . v o4 o« . . 1d
e Distributionsduringtheyear . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . ... 1e
f Ending balance . . . . .. . 1f

za Did the organization rnclude an amount on Form 990 Part X Ilne 21, for escrow or custodlal account liability? [ Yes L] No
If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XlIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part Xlil .
Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
{a) Current year {b) Prior year (€) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance
b Contributions . .
¢ Net investment eamnings, galns, and
losses . . . & . & . . . .
d Grants or scholarships . .
e Other expendrtures for facilities and
programs . . A T
f Administrative expenses . . .
g End of year balance
2  Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment » %
b Permanentendowment » %
¢ Term endowment » %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
8a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes| No
() Unrelatedorganizations . . . . . . . . . . . . .. ... .......... BOC—d*
(i} Related organizations . . . . . . . e e e e e e o . mat OO
b If “Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the rerated orgamzatlons Iusted as requnred on Schedule F{? e e e b [ O

Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
Part 70 Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property {a) Cost or other basis | {b) Cost or other basis {c) Accumulated {d) Book value

(investment) {other} depreclation

ia Land . . . . . . . . . . .

b Buildings . . . . AR

¢ Leasehold rmprovements

d Equipment . . . . . . ..

e Other .

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line10c.). . . . . W

Schedule D (Form 930) 2021
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QY10 Investments— Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Descripticn of security or category (b} Book value {c) Method of valuation:
(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year markst value

(1) Financial derivatives :
(2) Closely held equity interests .
(3) Other

A)

(B)

©

©)

€)

®

@)

H
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 890, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) . »
Investments—Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 980, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

{a) Description of investment (b) Book value {c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2
3
{4
5)
(6)
o
{8)
{9
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) . »
Other Assets,
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
{a) Description {b) Book value

(1)
2
3}
(4)
]
(6)
@
(8)
9)
Total. (Colurnn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B)fine15) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .»
Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.
1. {8) Description of llability {b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
]
@)
4)
5)
(6)
@
(8
©)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 980, Part X, col. (B)fine25) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .»
2. Liability for uncertain tax pasitions. In Part XIll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASG 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xllt . [
Schedule D {Form 890) 2021
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Page 4

I Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIl line 12: :
a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments . . . . . . . . . | 2a
b Donated services anduse offacilites . . . . . . . . . . . [2b
¢ Recoveriesofprioryeargrants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2
d Other{DescribeinPartXil). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2d SR
e Addlines2athrough2d . . . . . . . . . . . . 2e
3 Subtractline 2e fromline1 . . . . . . . ., . . . . 3
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on Ilne1 5
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, ine7b . . | 4a
b Other DescribeinPartXmy). . . . . . . . . . .. . . . |4b s
c Addlines4aand4b . . ., . - e 4c
Total revenue. Add lines 3 3 and 4c. (T h:s must equal Farm 990 Pa.rtl line 12 ) 5

Part 0l Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With E: Expensas per R

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

eturn.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . , . 1
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25: ey

a Donated services and useoffacilites . . . . . . . . . . . |2a

b Prioryearadjustments . . . . . . . . . . . ... . . |2p

¢ Otherlosses . . . e w5 e oW ow ® % e e w ® o |2

d Other (Describe in Part XIII) B | i

e Addlines2athrough2d . . . . . . . . . v v v v v v e e e . . 2e
3 Subtractline 2e fromline1 . . . 5 W Bl LA 3
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX Ilne 25 but not on Ilne 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, ine7b . . | 4a

b Other({DescribeinPartXill). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |4b i

¢ Addlinesd4aand4b . . . . 4c

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (T?us rnust equaf Farm 990 Partl Ime 1 8 ) . 5

5
P I} Supplemental Information.

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line
2; Part X|, lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xl lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Schedule D (Form 990} 2021
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SCHEDLULE J Compensation Information
(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest

| OMB No. 1545-0047

Compensated Employees
» Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

2021

Open to Public

De tof the T b Attach to Form 890. ;
|ntg:|g1m lggv;:ueas:amw » Go to www.irs.gov/Form950 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer Identification humber
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938
Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following ta or for a person listed on Form il
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part lll to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[ First-class or charter travel [C1Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[ Travel for companions [J Payments for business use of parsonal residence
[ Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [J Health or soclal club duss or initiation fees
[[] Discretionary spending account [ Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part Ill to
explai. . & o ¢ v o6 @ s e o oW s s B s E W . e e kA |
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line
T2 v o w5 2 v omos v ow ow W s ¥ B E 6§ WA g M s B s 8 e E §oE 5§ o 2 1010
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the i i e
organization’s CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a bex )
related organization to establish compensation of the CEQ/Executive Director, but explain in Part Iil. I B
[ compensation committee [Z] Written employment contract 1o s
ﬁ Independent compensation consultant [ Compensation survey or study 1)
[C] Form 980 of other organizations [ Approval by the board or compensation committee e B
4  During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing A o “ 5
organization or a related organization: S By
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? . . . . 42 |01 A
b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retlrement plan" i 4b ||
¢ Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? . 4c 1[0 | [
If “Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III. e Wi
Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4}, and 501(c)(29) organizations must complets lines 5-9.
§ For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
a Theorganization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0w e e
b Any related organization? . . .
If “Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe In Pan III
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VIl, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net eamings of:
a Theorganization? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 e e e ..
b Any related organization? . . T
If “Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe In Part III
7  For persons listed on Form 990, Part Vil, Section A, line 1a, did the organlzat:on provlde any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” describe in Part Il . : ¢ & o B 7 O
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
mParthll . . « « & v ¢ o v v e & 5w i £ oW 5 s BDE
9 If “Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumptlon procedure described in ' D D
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . B T T 9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No, 50053T Schedule J (Form 860) 2021
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Schedule J {(Form 990) 2021

Page
Partlll Supplemental Information

Provide the Information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 48, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part I, Also complets this part for any addltianal
Information.

Form and Line Part -~ I Line 1la
Reference:

Name Description
Brian Riblett 5186, 658

Schedule J (Fom990) 2021



SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Complete to provide Information for responses to specific questions on 2 @ 2 1
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Open to Public

P Attach to Form 980 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/FormS90 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer Identification number
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Form and Line Reference: Part VI Line 1lla

Review of Form 990: The annual CIC tax return is reviewed and approved by all members and trustees on an annual basis. There are meeting minutes from

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schadule O (Form 980 or 880-E2) (2021)



| oMmB No. 1545-0047

2021

Open to Public

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

(Form 990) Complate to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 880-EZ or to provide any additional information.

P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury L
Intemal Revenue Service > Go to www.irs.gov/Form390 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Form and Line Reference: Part VI Line 11b

The tax return is provided to all trustees for review and approval at the beginning of each fiscal year.

For Paparwork Reduction Act Notice, ses the Instructions for Form 880 or 980-E2Z. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 880 or 880-E2) (2021)



SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | oM No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Complate to provide information for responses to specific questions on
2021
Form 980 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Open to Public

P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form890 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer Identification number
MONTGCMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Form and Line Reference: Part VI Line 1l2c

Written conflict of interest policy: The City and it's trustees review the annual disclosure forms submitted by covered persons, and in compiling and

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 880 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 880 or 900-E2) (2021)



SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

| oms No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to spacific questions on 2 @ 2 1

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Depertment of the Traasury b Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
Internal Revenus Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

Open to Public

Inspection

Name of the organization
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Employer [dentification number
31-1132938

Form and Line Reference: Part VI Line 15a

Disclosure: The City provides its governing documents, policies and financial statements in meeting minutes and reports that can be found on the City

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 890-EZ Cat. No. 51056K

Schedule O (Form 820 or 880-EZ) (2021)



SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ | omB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Complete to provide infarmation for responses to specific questions on 2 @2 1
Form 990 or 890-E2 or to provide any additional information.
Open to Public

» Attach to Form 980 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service > Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Namae of the organization Employer Identification number
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Form and Line Reference: Part VI Line 19

All financial information is available on our website and provided for at annual meetings and on request.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notics, see the Instructions for Form 980 or 890-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 980 or 880-EZ) (2021)



| omB No. 1545-0047

2021

Open to Public

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

P Attach to Form 980 or Form 880-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Servica » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organlzation Employer Identification number
MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION 31-1132938

Form and Line Reference: Part XII Line 3b

Disclosure: The City provides its governing document, policies and financial statements in meeting minutes and reports that can be found on the City 1

For Paparwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 9880 or 980-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 890 or 800-E2) (2021)
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CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. M E M O RA N D U M
February 4, 2022
To: Brian K. Riblet, City Manager "{\9)
From: Katie Smiddy, Finance Director &)\
Subject: Review of 2021 Revenue and Expenditure Variances

Introduction

In 2021, the City experienced another positive year with income tax revenues exceeding the
estimate. General Fund revenues, because of increases in the income tax, were up $552,000 or
6.8% from 2020. Income tax, the City’s primary source of funding for general operations
accounted for 63.8% of the General Fund’s operating revenues and 16.48% of the City’s total
operating revenues in 2021.

Total City expenditures were under appropriations for the year. The same was true for the
General Fund, enabling the City to continue to operate within its budgeted resources. Both the
total and the General Fund expenditures and commitments were well within the target for
managed spending and appropriations.

2021 Revenue Variances

Total City Revenues

Estimate Actual Receipts Variance
2017 $20,285,646 $20,430,929 $145,283
2018 $27,784,006 $31,995,308 $4,211,302
2019 $26,142,709 $25,599,225 $(543,484)
2020 %$40,268,882 $35,287,970 $(4,980,912)
2021 $26,168,348 $52,607,373 $26,439,025
Income Tax

Estimate Actual Receipts Variance
2017 $8,361,108 $9,172,225 $811,17
2018 $9,020,196 $9,333,556 $313,360
2012 $9,402,000 $9,913,904 $511,904
2020 $9,505,659 $10,145,884 $640,225
2021 $9,250,000 $10,835,808 $1,585,808

Total income tax receipts for 2021 exceeded the estimate by 14.64%. Below is a graph depicting

actual collections for the years 2011-2021:

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « montgomeryohio.org = 513-891-2424
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Property Tax-General Fund

Estimate Actual Receipts
2017  $2,304,717 $2,354,172
2018 $2,796,065 $2,585,511
2019 $3,066,789 $2,610,589
2020 $3,175,270 $2,660,614
2021 $2,608,719 $2,927,148

Property Tax-Fire Levy Fund

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

The City’s total property tax receipts (combined general and fire levy) are 6.04% more than

Estimate
$1,999,081
$2,019,072
$5,494,388
$5,494,388
$5,494,388

Actual Receipts
$1,964,589
$1,991,681
$5,580,905
$5,686,046
$5,665,460

the budget estimate for 2021.

The millage in the General Fund is made up of 3 mills of inside millage and 1.5 mills of voted
charter millage. The City’s two Fire levies are continuous (5.55 and 6.0 mills) and because of
the reduction factor, they do not receive increases based on reappraisals, as the General Fund

does on its inside millage. Both Fire levies, however, do receive increases from new

construction.

Variance

$49,455
$(210,554)
$(456,200)
$(514,656)
$318,429

Variance

$(34,492)
$(27,391)
$86,517
$191,658
$171,072

City of Montgomery = 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - (513) 891-2424




The graph below reflects the assessed valuation of the City over the last ten years.
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Investment Income

Estimate Actual Receipts Variance
2017 $166,427 $280,618 $114,191
2018 $251,174 $406,893 $155,719
2019 $287,917 $527,428 $239,511
2020 $415,627 $590,806 $175,179
2021 $367,100 $159,481 $(207,618)

The City's investment policy calls for the return on the entire portfolio to meet the rate on a six
month Treasury bill. STAR’s interest rates began at .10% in January and ended at 0.09% in
December. The six-month T-Bill's comparable rates were .09% and 0.19%, respectively.
Keep in mind, the City’s investment policy’s “foremost objective” is the preservation of capital.
All City investments are backed by the credit of the federal government, FDIC, pooled collateral
by depository banks or in the case of StarOHIO carry a Standard & Poor’s highest credit rating
of AAA.

A portion of the City’s investments are STAR Chio, which is a money market fund operated by
the State Treasurer’'s Office, and the remaining investments are in a laddered maturity plan
consisting of securities of several federal agencies and certificates of deposits. The maturity
dates for the laddered portfolio range from one year to five years. The chart below shows the
maturities of the $20,457,259 investment portfolio as of December 31, 2021:

City of Montgomery = 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - (513) 891-2424



Investments as of 12/31/2021

18,500,000

16,485,905.42 -

16,500,000

i 0-365 days

14,500,000

M 366-730 days

12,500,000

10,500,000

M 731-1095 days

8,500,000

71 1096-1460 days

6,500,000

4,500,000

M 1461-1825 days

2,500,000 ~1,268,060.53

1,473,293.52

500,000

985,000.00
P

Building Permits

Estimate
2017 $380,000
2018 $350,000
2019 $325,000
2020 $325,000
2021 $200,000

Actual Receipts
$256,267
$427,505
$283,610
$298,236
$804,243

Variance
$(123,733)
$77,505
$(41,390)
$(26,764)
$604,243

The City’s building permit collections were 402.12% higher than the revenue estimate. The
number of teardowns remained flat with a total of 11 dwelling units demolished in 2021. Since
teardowns began in 2007, there have been a total of 313 teardowns or approximately 9.1% of
the City’s estimated detached single-family residential units. There were 635 building permits
issued in 2021 compared to 502 in 2020.

General Fund Revenues

Estimate
2017 $9,911,669
2018 $11,299,396
2019 $11,881,921
2020 $12,097,114
2021 $10,998,047

Actual Receipts
$10,862,071
$11,651,246
$11,966,258
$12,324,175
$13,571,885

Variance
$950,402
$351,850
$84,337
$227,061
$2,573,838

Total general fund revenue for 2021 exceeded the estimate by 23.4% and was 10.12% above
2020 actual revenue. The increase over estimated revenues was primarily due to increase in

income tax.

City of Montgomery ¢ 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 = (513) 891-2424




Municipal Pool Fund

Estimate Actual Receipts Variance
2017 $218,680 $259,801 $41,121
2018 $236,600 $278,136 $41,536
2019 $238,170 $264,101 $25,931
2020 %$239,961 $92,833 $(147,128)
2021 $127,400 $253,285 $125,885

The pool’'s operations resulted in receipts of $253,285 with $15,000 being transferred into the
fund from the General Fund. This is an increase in revenues of $160,452 or 172.84% more than
2020 revenues. Total expenses for pool operations in 2021 were $198,366 compared to
$212,218 spent in 2020: this is a decrease of $13,852. Total attendance was 20,406 in 2027,
10,109 in 2020, 27,298 in 2019, 28,659 in 2018, and 27,424 in 2017. The Covid-19 Pandemic and
associated restrictions were the 2020 cause in decreased attendance and revenue. 2021 saw
much less impact and a return to normalcy.

Capital Improvement Fund

Estimate Actual Receipts Variance
2017 $3,301,133 $2,622,760 $(678,373)
2018 $2,682,164 $2,936,157 $253,993
2019 $2,273,728 $2,188,465 $(85,263)
2020 $2,013,900 $2,131,300 $117,400
2021 $2,397,880 $2,516,117 $118,237

The Capital Improvement Fund received 25% of the City’'s income tax in years 2007 through
2012. In 2013, this percentage was reduced to 20%. Compared to 2020, the 2021 Capital
Improvement Fund receipts were $429,818 or 20.17% more, with $292,309 in grant funds
received in 2021 from Hamilton County Transportation Improvement District (HCTID) for
continued work on the Montgomery Road Sidewalk Project.

Triangle TIF Fund

TIF Value Net TIF Receipts Developer Deficit
2017 $5,573,460 $77,724 $40,714 $(130,285)
2018 $5,710,000 $77,798 $10,410 $(154,239)
2019 $5,448,660 $95,762 $0 $(159,843)
2020 $5,850,950 $87,034 $0 $(160,567)
2021 $5,850,950 $87,305 $0 $(157,118)

The revenues of the Triangle Tax Increment Financing Fund, after County expenses are
deducted, are shared 50% with Sycamore schools. The agreement with the developer required
annual service payments be paid from TIF revenues, any deficit is to be made up by the
developer. As of December 31, 2021, there exists a cumulative deficit of $157,118.

In May of 2021, the mortgage holder of the property initiated a foreclosure action. The City will
continue to receive current collections from real estate settlements and is currently pursuing
legal action to secure payment as a tax lien.
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2021 Expenditure Variances

Total City Expenditures excluding Transfers and Advances

Appropriation

2017 $26,167,077
2018 $26,509,097
2019 $27,629,671
2020 $43,527,009
2021 $51,103,777

$20,449,155
$17,679,666

$22,211,440
$28,149,906
$44,943,475

$2,289,171
$4,188,169
$2,364,420
$3,158,361
$1,212,669

Actual Expenditures Encumbrances

Variance
$3,428,751
$4,641,262
$3,053,811
$12,218,742
$6,160,302

Outstanding encumbrances at year-end represent commitments of the current year budget

resources.

General Fund Expenditures excluding Transfers and Advances

Appropriation

2017 $11,520,101
2018 $10,639,608
2019 $711,068,019
2020 $13,716,825
2021 $12,878,399

$181,595
$124,794

$13,889
$61,798
$120,556

Actual Expenditures Encumbrances
$9,942,921
$9,081,889
$10,053,178
$9,775,988
$10,429,738

Variance
$1,395,585
$1,432,925
$900,952
$3,879,039
$2,448,661

General Fund expenditures including outstanding encumbrances totaled 81.0% of the revised
appropriations for 2021. The 2021 General Fund expenditures were $653,750 or 6.68% higher

than actual 2020 expenditures.

Total General Fund expenditures with transfers and

encumbrances in 2021 were $11,431,638. The following chart graphically depicts total revenues
and expenditures, as well as General Fund revenues and expenditures for the years 2011 through

2021.
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Bonded Debt

Special Assessment Debt - As of December 31, 2021, the City has no Special Assessment Debt
outstanding.

General Obligation Debt - As of December 31, 2021, the City has $7,711,875 outstanding with a
final maturity of 2038. Debt service payments for this debt are made for bond anticipation
notes issued for the Montgomery Quarter Infrastructure Improvements.

Reserve of Montgomery Bond Retirement - As of December 31, 2021, the City has zero
outstanding with its final maturity in 2021.

Special Obligation Debt - As of December 31, 2021, the City has $57,697,548 outstanding with
a final maturity of 2050. Debt service payments for this debt are made as payments in lieu of
taxes to property owners located in the Vintage Club phase | and phase || developments. Below
is the remaining amortization schedule for this debt.

Principal Interest Debt Service
2017 $300,000 $519,153 $819,153
2018 $450,000 $617,996 $1,067,996
2019 $460,000 $749,734 $1,209,734
2020 $560,000 $550,475 $1,110,475
2021 $570,000 $1,171,889 $1,741,889
2022-50 $39,020,000 $18,677,548 $57,697,548

Vintage Club TIF Fund

TIF Value Net TIF Receipts Debt Service
2017 $126,177,503 $1,084,496 $819,153
2018 $133,748,153 $1,019,366 $964,803
2019 $104,968,400 $1,076,121 $966,928
2020 $114,386,771 $1,083,841 $837,669
2021 $114,084,286 $1,229,532 $83517

The revenues of the Vintage Club Tax Increment Financing Fund, after county expenses are
deducted, are shared 50% with Sycamore schools. The bond schedule requires that annual
service payments be made from TIF revenues. The original 2013 bond issue was refinanced in
fourth quarter 2019 and as of December 31, 2021, the bonds outstanding totals $14,184,000.
The amortization schedule runs through 2038.

Targeted Fund Balances

General Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the General Fund as of December 31, 2021
was $18,286,969 which represents a reserve of approximately 19 months, when using the total
General Fund expenditures of $10,462,276 (total General Fund expenditures net of transfers of
$1,001,900.00 to the Community Oriented Policing Fund, the Street Maintenance and Repair
Fund, the Environmental Impact Area Funds, and Municipal Pool Fund plus year-end
encumbrances of $124,423) as the basis for determining the reserve.
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Fire Levy Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the Fire Levy Fund as of December 31,
2021, was $11,514,439 which represents a reserve of approximately 35 months, when using the
total Fire Levy Fund expenditures $3,967,632 and outstanding encumbrances of $463,605, as
the basis for determining the reserve.

Capital Improvement Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the Capital Improvement
Fund as of December 31, 2021, was $3,718,180 which is well above the targeted balance of
$1,000,000.

General Bond Retirement Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the General Bond
Retirement Fund as of December 31, 2021, was $720,831.

Arts & Amenities Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the Arts & Amenities Fund as of
December 31, 2021, was $647,494, which is well above the targeted balance of $376,237.

Additional Fund Balances

Street Construction Maintenance & Repair Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the
Street Construction Maintenance & Repair Fund as of December 31, 2021, was $2,009,607,
which represents a reserve of approximately 24 months, when using the total Street
Construction Maintenance & Repair Fund expenditures and outstanding encumbrances of
$32,783, as the basis for determining the reserve.

Downtown Improvement Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of the Downtown
Improvement Fund as of December 31, 2021, was $3,565,925.

Vintage Club (Phase I) Tax Increment Financing Fund - The unencumbered cash balance of
the Vintage Club TIF Fund as of December 31, 2021, was $2,720,745. The outstanding bonded
debt against this fund is $13,348,640.

Please advise if you have any questions or would like additional information.

c: Connie Gaylor, Administrative Coordinator
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These minutes are a draft of the proposed minutes from the Financial Planning Committee of the City Council
meeting. They do not represent the official record of proceedings until formally adopted by the Financial
Planning Committee of City Council. Formal adoption is noted by signature of the Chair within the minutes.

City of Montgomery
Financial Planning Committee Meeting
December 6, 2021

Present Council Committee Members Present
Brian Riblet, City Manager Ken Suer, Chair

Tracy Henao, Asst. City Manager Mike Cappel

Katie Smiddy, Finance Director Lee Ann Bissmeyer

Connie Gaylor, Clerk of Council

The Financial Planning Committee of Council meeting was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by Chairman
Suer.

November 2021 Income Tax Report

Ms. Smiddy explained that for the month of November, the City’s total income tax receipts were
$682,548, which is a decrease of $23,635 or (3.35) % compared to the 2020 November collections
of $706,183. Although collections were down slightly in November, year-to-date revenue is up
5.24%.

Ms. Smiddy reported that withholding collections were $638,614; a decrease of $17,736 or (2.71) %
when compared to November 2020 collections of $656,377. Despite the slight decrease in
November collections, the year-to-date withholding revenue is 4.68% higher than 2020.

Ms. Smiddy reported that net profits from businesses located within or doing business within
Montgomery were $15,110. This is a decrease of $381.00 or (2.46) % when compared to November
2020 collections of $15,491. Year-to-date business collections are down 3.35%.

Ms. Smiddy explained that revenues of $28,824 were collected in November 2021 from residents
living in Montgomery, which is a decrease of $5,491 or (16) % when compared to November 2020
collections of $34,315. Since all individual returns were posted prior to the end of October, most
of the income was included in October totals. Year-to-date revenue is up 10.07%.

Supplemental Appropriations to the 2021 Budget

Ms. Smiddy explained to the Committee that it is necessary for City Council to amend the 2021
Appropriation Ordinance to appropriate and reduce appropriations in various funds.

Ms. Smiddy explained that the aggregate effect of the supplemental appropriations is to increase
total appropriations by $4,163,098 as a result of increased obligations in comparison to total
appropriations. Under Ohio Revised Code, appropriations cannot be exceeded by expenditures and
appropriations cannot be made when there are no monies available in the fund balance.

Ms. Smiddy and the Committee reviewed the proposed supplemental appropriations and Ms. Smiddy
added that she anticipated submitting a final scheduled of needed appropriations by the December
15 Work Session for requested passage of the Ordinance at that meeting.
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Mr. Suer stated that the Building Permit expense seems a large amount of activity and expense.

Mr. Riblet explained that the expense amount did not reflect the revenue that is put into that account
which is higher as the City gains revenue from permit fees. He stated that there were large permits
filed this year and it was difficult to project how much those fees would be when budgeting that line

item.

Mr. Cappel made a motion to add the Supplemental Appropriation Ordinance request to the
December 15, 2021 City Council Work Session agenda. Mrs. Bissmeyer seconded. The Committee
unanimously agreed.

Other Business

Mr. Riblet provided an update of the Gerri Harbison Memorial Fund balance. He explained that
currently the fund has $20,000 in it. He estimated that with current commitments from various
businesses the fund would grow to approximately $45,000 by the end of the year. Mr. Riblet added
that he anticipated bringing a contract with sculptor, Tom Tsuchiya to City Council in early 2022.

Mr. Suer stated that Council Member Messer will become the authorized signer on the City Council
Sunshine Fund account, and he stated there was a proposal to move some of those funds to the Gerri
Harbison Memorial Fund.

Mr. Riblet stated that Ms. Roesch contributed $350 from that fund before she retired.

Minutes

Mr. Cappel moved to accept the minutes of the November 1, 2021 meeting of the Financial Planning
Committee as written. Mrs. Bissmeyer seconded. The Committee unanimously agreed.

Adjournment

Mrs. Bissmeyer moved for adjournment. Mr. Cappel seconded. The Committee unanimously
agreed.

The Financial Planning Committee of Council was adjourned at 5:06 p.m.

Chair



